MINUTES OF
CITY OF CREEDMOOR - BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RETREAT
SATURDAY, JANUARY 10, 2009
9:00 A.M.

PRESENT:

Board of Commissioners

Mayor Darryl Moss, Mayor Pro-tem Tim Karan, Comnus&r Jimmy Minor,
Commissioner Otha Piper, Jr., Commissioner Larry fsdm and Commissioner Herman
Wilkerson.

City Staff
Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer, Ms. Santliarper, City Clerk, Mr. Dave

Roesler, Planning Director, Mr. Steve Colenda, City éespr and Mr. Tim Benware, Police
Chief

Attorney.
Mr. Tom Currin

Planning Board Attendees
Ms. Suzanne Smith, Chairman, Mr. Wayne Cross andMidred Goss

Board of Adjustment
Mr. Jay Rich

TCC.
Mr. John Wilkerson and Mr. Jay Rich

Citizens
Mr. John Greene

Granville County Commissioners
Commissioner Hubert Gooch and Commissioner Pete Aeeret

Media
Mr. Harry Coleman- Butner Creedmoor News

Financial
Mr. Bill Tatum and Mr. Kelley Howard, Il

WELCOME & PURPOSE:

Mayor Moss opened the Retreat by welcoming everyonesaltethat he chose Jon’s Main
Street Bar & Grill as the location to show appreoiatior a Main Street business.



Mayor Moss announced that the topic of the retreat @raedmoor’'s Economic Stimulus
Plan and gave an overview of the agenda.

OPENING REMARKS:

Mayor Moss announced that he invited Granville County reptasves Chairman Hubert
Gooch and Mr. Pete Averette and they should arrivetlghoMayor Moss recognized and
thanked the Planning Board members, Board of Adjustment nmeamoeThe Creedmoor
Collaborative (TCC) members in attendance for thaitigpation. Mayor Moss advised that
he had invited Mr. Deuard Bowden, Chairman of the Busindgisory Committee;
however he was unable to attend. Mr. Bowden is schedalgive an update at the Board of
Commissioner’'s Work Session scheduled for Wednesdayadahd, 2009.

Commissioner Minor said that he would like to see btamging at this meeting to discuss
where the City is today and where we need to be. Ideessed that he would like for the
Board to prioritize the needs of the City for the upconyiear.

Commissioner Karan expressed that he would like foBthed to focus on brainstorming at
each Work Session meeting. He suggested that each demmiitairman give a report at
these meetings and receive feedback from the othedBoambers.

Commissioner Wilkerson said that he agreed with Comomss Karan's statement. He also
expressed that each Board member and staff should be adeufur getting their jobs
accomplished and in a timely manner.

Commissioner Piper said that during the monthly brainstayraession the Board should
listen and have good interaction with one another. ati#ed that the Board needs to also
listen to the concerns of the citizens and move fawath good planning.

Commissioner Robinson expressed that this is the fourateahat he has attended and the
outcome has always been positive. He agreed thatohdd valso like to see emphasis on
good planning today for the future needs of the City.

Mayor Moss said that he found an interesting artided “To Go Forward-Retreat” He said
that the article spoke of coming together, prioritiedjciehcy, accountability, staying
informed and good planning. Mayor Moss proclaimed the tHemine day “Retreating To
Go Forward”.

REPORT ON FINANCE DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS:

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer addressesty®mne and read the following
press release he presented at the Emergency Meetimiplaist

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manger expressed that under preseonomic conditions and
pending financial reporting requirements, he found it necggsareorganize the Finance
Department. He advised that he would assume the rebpiynss the Finance Officer in



addition to his present duties as City Manager. He comsidine department needs and
decided to eliminate the Director of Finance position. sd&l that he would be initially
utilizing the outside services of Mr. Kelly L. Howard, df Oxford and Mr. Bill Tatum of
Creedmoor and gave an overview of their credentials.

Mr. Kelly Howard, Il introduced himself and said that haswreviously the Finance Officer
for the Town of Oxford and he is currently the Intefiimance Director for Butner. He
noted that he helped incorporate the Town of Butner and/S&A. Mr. Howard said that

he looks forward to serving the City of Creedmoor.

Mr. Bill Tatum introduced himself and said that he has beehis business for the last 41

years. He said that he would be assisting the CityCifedmoor in streamlining the

operations of the Finance Department. Mr. Tatum aduede and Mr. Howard have been
working with Mr. Mercer for the past couple of weeks dmelytare a good solid team and the
City will be pleased with the outcome.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer saidttatprevious meetings he started out
talking about the base of a triangle as 1) Trust, 2) tRgaConflict, 3) Commitment, 4)
Accountability and 5) Results.

Mr. Mercer referred to past, present and future. He daad the past consists of

reconciliations and audits, which will be handled by. Rill Tatum. For the present, Mr.

Howard will be working on the procedures, process and rsystebe implemented and

processing the statements. Mr. Mercer advised that thiecaudits are completed Mr. Bill

Tatum will also help with the present and future. He esged that there will be a 90 day
plan, one year plan and five year plan. Mr. Tonmddesaid that they feel comfortable with
the logics software. He said that they spent aara spproximately five hours reviewing the
system and it has capabilities that have not beeredili Mr. Mercer expressed that training
will be essential as we move forward through this procékssaid that he will be reviewing

job descriptions to make sure that they harmonize wihnéw way of doing business.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer advised tia has had several discussions
with Ms. Sharon Edmundson of the Local Governmenm@gsion (LGC) and she feels
confident and offered her support. Her team is readyelp at a moments notice. The
individual working for the IRS that is reviewing the Citgppeal is back from vacation. Mr.
Mercer said that he will have to get back with the Baavout the given date of completion.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer said ttheg City is following procedure and
read General Statute 8159.24 Finance Officer. He alsoredfto General Statute §159-25;
Duties of Finance Officer; Dual Signatures on checkgriral control procedures subject to
Commission regulation.

Commissioner Minor commented that as a finance teamohdd like to see team training,
team building and team work.



Mayor Moss expressed that the financial problems bega@df and the IRS issue has been
since the year 2005. This financial issue has overshadoweygthevg that the City has
tried to accomplish. He said that the Finance Coremits working with the City Manager
hand-in-hand to get this issue resolved.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer said thathas scheduled a staff meeting
for 7:30 a.m. Monday morning to explain the situation afidabout the seriousness of team
work and the five-step process of trust. He said thatdmted to step up professionalism,
team work, accountability and technology. Mr. Mercetedathat to do so, the employees
need to understand what they are being held accountableHe expressed displeasure with
the administrative side of City Hall.

Mayor Moss advised that the City Manager is reviewirgdberall operations of the City of
Creedmoor; specifically the administrative side. ldeed that last year focused on the Police
Department side of City Hall. He said that the Pol@partment was re-evaluated and is
working well. Mayor Moss said that the City Managectasnmitted and no position is safe.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Director said tie does not operate on emotions.
He said that he is going to analyze the situation ané ome job descriptions have been
defined he will give everyone a chance to do their job phpp@&Iir. Mercer said that he will
look at the overall objective and if it fits that imd and if not he will have to make
adjustments. He said that he has to be clear andhooivate to those individuals what is
expected of them and how they are doing. Mr. Mercer thet he will be looking at
statistics, metrics and measurement.

Commissioner Wilkerson inquired about the system’szatibn for generating a spread
sheet with numbers to show the Board how the monbgirgy spent. He said that this has
been a request since the year 2005.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer said ttiz¢ system has great capabilities
that have not been utilized in the past. He said thgtwiiebe ready to move forward with
the budget. The system has the capability to dump intel epreadsheets and access data
bases to generate reports with confident numbers. Mrcéd expressed that they were
hesitant to send out spreadsheets in the past becausentbers would not have been
accurate. He said that they should be able to suppheatém budget; however they must
be sure the numbers have been reconciled. Mr. Medwseal that they should be utilizing
these capabilities by March. Mr. Jim Winston, City Aadis on vacation until January 15
and when he returns they will be scheduling a time ®2007-2008 audit.

Commissioner Minor asked if the City Manager would héneereconciliation in the 90 day
timeframe. He said that great progress has been mtde thie last year.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer replieattie is 90% confident that they
will have the reconciliation up to date within 90 days.



Mr. Hubert Gooch and Mr. Pete Averette the City’'s Qgurepresentatives arrived and
Mayor Moss introduced and welcomed them to the meeting.

Mr. Gooch said that these are critical times and tlemployment rate in Granville County
is 8.3%. Granville County is faced with many unpleashatlenges. Mr. Gooch expressed
that the Library Bond Issue passed and to fulfill thisg#tlon there will be a tax increase in
Granville County. He said that the schools are camiplg about over crowdedness, the
Senior Center needs more space and the VolunteeDepartment also needs financial
assistance. Safety and fire protection is a high pyioNMr. Gooch said that it is obvious that
Creedmoor has a downtown traffic problem. He thankedBiard for the invitation and
expressed that they are elected to serve Granville Caititgns and will help Creedmoor
wherever possible. Mr. Gooch said that the Granvillar®y Board Retreat is scheduled for
Friday, January 3Dat 5:30 p.m. and Saturday, Januar$} 8bm 8:00 a.m. until 12:00 p.m.
at the new EMS building in Wilton. Mr. Gooch expresshdt the and Commissioner
Averette worked hard to get the new EMS building.

Commissioner Karan commented that there has beeruggl between Creedmoor and
SGWASA in reference to the Wilton water line. Hemroented that the two Creedmoor
representatives on the SGWASA Board has been strippeotioiy rights and are being
punished because they want to keep the communication opdretamgptions available.

Commissioner Karan also expressed that the Citydiasited to the County an application
for an ETJ expansion as well as permission to movedahleaeceive permission from
Legislation to get a two-mile ETJ expansion. He ndted the City is planning to pursue
these applications.

Commissioner Minor expressed that the City limits gst plae two-mile ETJ limits with the
annexation of Walters Road. He said the City needsxansion for planning purposes.

Mr. Gooch said that he understands the concerns Commisai@an has about SGWASA as
he has been approached by others about Creedmoor’s vigtirig. r He said that this is a
separate entity and they appoint their representatieege\rer they do not interfere.

Commissioner Robinson questioned that the Granville Cddotyd does not have input as
to what their SGWASA representatives are doing. He #aad the two Creedmoor
SGWASA representatives always keep the other CreedmoardBnembers updated and
therefore we make decisions as a Board to forward to S&AV Commissioner Robinson
expressed that he was elected to serve the citize@seetimoor and he tells the SGWASA
representatives what he expects them to administer.

Mr. Gooch expressed that he felt that SGWASA shoule Heeen invited to the Retreat. He
noted that he would relay back to the Granville County 8dlae City’s dissatisfaction with
SGWASA policy.

Commissioner Minor referred back to the ETJ expanamplication that was submitted. He
said that two years ago it was a joint effect betw@eredmoor, Stoval, Stem and Oxford.



Commissioner Karan said that an ETJ subcommittee evasetl and Edgar Smoak was the
Chairman. He said that he believes that Creedmoomalhtte criteria for ETJ expansion;
however we never received a formal approval/disapproval.

Mr. Gooch said that he would follow-up on the ETJ requests.

Mr. Pete Averette said that he did not have anything td@ddhat Commissioner Gooch has
said. He expressed that the Granville County Board dalisésthe ETJ expansion requests;
however they did not vote on this issue. He thanked ilyef@® inviting him.

Mayor Moss asked that Chief Benware, Steve Colendty, I@spector, Dave Roesler,
Planning Director and Attorney Currin give an update ovagti

Attorney Currin said that the City has a lot going od &e and Attorney Lori Dutra are
happy to help. He said that there has been a queastioommunication. He said that if
something is needed right away send a fax for an imieetégponse. Attorney Currin said
that the fax number is (919) 690-1415. He said that theggeading City issues that should
not be discussed at this time. Attorney Currin said ieahnd Attorney Jim Cross will be
meeting in reference to the water tower issue.

Commissioner Wilkerson inquired about the progress oFtteaman’s Contract in reference
to the retired Fireman’s benefit.

Attorney Currin said that he needed to meet with Mr. Thl@rcer, City Manager in
reference to that contract.

Chief Benware said that things are going well. He esgkshat after joining Creedmoor his
priority was to do a departmental analysis and reorgamizaHis objective was to create a
positive working environment. Chief Benware noted thastnud the feedback has been
positive and there have been several people inquire abguibyment; therefore he can be
more selective. Chief Benware said that he has be®hngeofficers to necessary training.
He said that as part of the reorganization he placediaaded investigator for drugs and the
City has received a lot of sales tax money. ChiefnB&a said that this money is held in a
separate account and he purchased surveillance equipmergantitbf this money. Chief

Benware gave an overview of the taser training that \e&s for the officers. He said that
the officers have the option of carrying pepper spraghtrstick or a taser. Chief Benware
noted that the mobile cameras need to be replacedoakd sf individual cameras as a more
economical option.

Dave Roesler, Planning Director said that it is obvious ttinatis a development economic
down turn even with the new CVS and Cardinal State Bartte said that prior to October,
2008 there was a tremendous amount of development inferegbtential projects. Mr.

Roesler expressed that he is encouraged that two oérhpest development companies in
North Carolina was recently here and are considerimgctode Creedmoor in their five year



development plan. Mr. Roesler said that there haslsen a lot of interest from appraisers
the last several weeks.

Mr. Dave Roesler said that the City is currently wogkon a strategic plan and a downtown
streetscape plan. He expressed that the City Manageaskad that he review uses for the
other side of Lake Rogers.

Commissioner Piper noted concern of abandoned buildinds$ighway 15 and the liability.
He said that he has received several phone cakfarence to the cleanup of Hwy. 15.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer expresskdt he asked the Planning
Director to gather information and bring forth a plandgcussion to move forward with a
five-year plan.

Mr. Steve Colenda, City Inspector expressed that asioned earlier construction is down.
There have been a few new residential, several remoaleds the two commercial
developments. Mr. Colenda said that he has beempbeaiat construction will begin to pick
up in the near future. He said that he would like to samitg for staff on how to

communicate with the public.

Commissioner Minor said that he would like to see improent in communication as to
Inspections and Planning letting staff know when they areggmirbe out and where they
will be.

Steve Colenda advised that commercial tenants haapply for a privilege license and they
must see Dave and Steve for approval. He said thagitleis him the opportunity to inspect
the buildings before approval. Mr. Colenda said tleatldes an inspection and gives a verbal
approval; however they must make the proposed improvenisitse receiving final
approval.

Ms. Suzanne Smith, Planning Board Chairman said that hefagaake Planning Board this
year is to include in the guidelines the greenest growtie s&id that Energy Star is a good
start; however she would like to see the developers gmbehat. Ms. Smith said that it has
been proven that property built with the energy efficjeand cleaner materials hold their
value. She said that she is in the process of searahirgnfexpert to speak on high-end
green growth development. She said that she would likegrfeen growth to be spread
county wide. She realizes that Creedmoor is considaréedroom community and she
would prefer to think of Creedmoor as a rural communits. Smith encourages low
volume growth. Ms. Smith said that she would alsotikeee more activity in local farming
to provide food for the local communities rather thawihg food shipped from California.
This all ties into green growth for the future and thithes perfect opportunity for Granville
County. She would like to see the City and County proindentives for the farmers of
Granville County.

Commissioner Minor said that he has a contact spoksspdor green growth and he will
forward the information to Ms. Smith.



Mildred Goss, Planning Board member commented that she wasssed with the new
Automatic Meter Readers (AMR) and thanked the City Man#agancluding her in the pilot
program.

Commissioner Karan spoke in reference to UNRBA andpteetreatment of storm water.
He also made reference to the Mt. Olive pickle bartes the City can purchase for $5.00
each and resale to citizens for approximately $6.00 eacbvier transportation costs. These
barrels can be used for rain barrels and compost harrels

Commissioner Karan expressed that Hwy. 56 West is peadeestate and he would like for
the Board to consider a Special Use District overlay.

Mr. Dave Roesler, Planning Director said that this wassame that the Planning Board is
currently reviewing.

BRAINSTORM INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS:

Commissioner Wilkerson expressed the need to priorieestreet needs of Creedmoor and
surrounding areas.

Mayor Moss said that he serves on the North Carolmyironmental Management
Commission Committee and he gave a brief overview oKére Lake inner basin transfer
and said that Creedmoor is listed as a potentiabmest for Oxford. Mayor Moss said that
storm water regulations are going to be an issue ingaefuture.

Mr. Dave Roesler, Planning Director said that the Cresarstorm water management is in
compliance. The storm water design manual was dewlkbypeugh the Wooten Company.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Officer gave an tgpdaf the Lake Rogers
dredging project. He said that he plans to open the lakéalyyl,20009.

Mayor Moss referenced the Main Street Economic Regaoamed the goal is to identify local
projects and a list of projects to send for possiblawdtis money. He said that there were
ten identified categories for Stimulus Legislatiomding in the amount of 800 billion
dollars. Mayor Moss expressed that the categorieswbatd be of interest to the City are
CDBG grant, Energy Block Grant, City Streets & MetRyblic Safety and Water/Waste
Water categories.

Commissioner Minor presented a spreadsheet of projextsdascription. The Board
discussed the following projects and estimated cost:

Water/Sewer Improvements

Water/Sewer New Capacity $20 million
Water/Sewer Internal Upgrades $ 7 million
Complete the dredging project $ 6 million



Streets

Storm Water $ 2.5 million
Sidewalks $10 million
Resurfacing $ 3 million

Public Facilities

Public Safety Building $ 4 million
Fire Department Substation $80,000
Police Officer $80,000
Recreation Park $10 million

Public Safety
Ladder Truck $950,000

Technology
Wi-Fi $100,000

Other.
Downtown Development &
Public Parking $ 4 million

Commissioner Minor expressed that the Volunteer Bepartment could use two people on
12 hour days. He said that the Creedmoor Fire Departstaried a Junior Fire Fighters
program approximately four years ago and as they turn 18 p&hi90% are joining the
department. Commissioner Minor advised that currentlyethee a lot of new Junior Fire
Fighters at the Creedmoor Volunteer Fire Department.

Ms. Suzanne Smith inquired about horse trails at theogexprecreational facility. She
noted that Southern Granville County has a major hoopelation.

Commissioner Wilkerson advised that at the last gregnweeting they discussed adding
horse trails on the edge of the park and this is siitigogeviewed.

Mr. John Greene, Lyons Street suggested that the Gitypnsks and sand for sidewalks for
economical reasons.

Mayor Moss expressed that this year there is greatyseess the General Assembly in
reference to annexation law and he felt this was gargitt municipalities.

Mr. Tom Mercer said that with the TCC five year plae City may want to consider a full
time grant person to market Creedmoor in many diffeneys. He noted that looking at the
zoning map there should be a study as to where the groarth is and where it should be so
that the City can drive growth instead of growth driving us



Mr. Harry Coleman, Butner Creedmoor News said thatofxfhas a Downtown Re-
development person that effectively spends all ofime tmarketing Oxford. Mr. Coleman
said that he has been impressed with what he has sean@shed by the Re-development
person and this may be something that the City of Creedstmuld consider. He expressed
that commercial development is the City’s best chanaenerate tax dollars.

Commissioner Wilkerson expressed that Granville CoumignBmic Development has not
done anything to help Creedmoor. He said that the Cikgdathat they help bring small
businesses to Creedmoor that do not require large amotintater and this was never
accomplished.

Mayor Moss expressed that in previous years Creedowributed $10,000 per year to the
Granville County Economic Development; however Creemimstopped contributing
because Granville County made the decision that Creedmoaidwbe a bedroom
community.

Commissioner Minor suggests the website as a greatofvadvertising and recruiting
businesses.

Mr. Jay Rich expressed that he and the City Manageran®tv weeks ago in reference to
technology to help utilize the website more efficigntl

Commissioner Karan expressed that the website nedmsgmactive as well as reactive. He
also expressed that Wi-Fi would be an excellent assttet City of Creedmoor as a money
maker and as an incentive.

Mr. Tom Mercer, City Manager/Finance Director said tihat City may want to consider an
assisted living facility.

Commissioner Karan expressed that if the City wantsarsted living facility the ordinance
will need to change. He explained that there is ahatfemile rule for group home
facilities.

CLOSING REMARKS:

Mayor Moss advised that Ms. Scottie Wilkins has requestadtie Board identify projects
that the City wants to move forward through NCDOT. ridéed that Hwy. 50 is already on
the list. He said that R2542 and the sidewalk down Hwyrd&® fFood Lion to Creedmoor
Elementary should to be added.

Commissioner Wilkerson advised that at the next Grinuireenways meeting the
Committee will be prioritizing streets for NCDOT. ekhaid that he would also like for
Hwy. 15 to be repaved from I-85 to the Virginia line.

Mr. Dave Roesler, Planning Director said that he wibyie the Board with the list of
proposed improvements from the Granville County Transpont&lan on Monday.

10



Mr. Harry Coleman inquired about an Emergency ManageDisaister Center.

Commissioner Minor advised that would be part of the neWi® Safety Building, which
will include a commercial kitchen and shower facilities

Commissioner Wilkerson inquired about the progress ofcatilon for the Creedmoor
Farmer’s Market.

Mayor Moss said that a location has not been foundhendsked that Mr. Dave Roesler,
Planning Director search the Granville County GPS systerthé name of the owner of the
Red Front lot.

Mr. Harry Coleman expressed appreciation for the decitiohire Bill Tatum and Kelly
Howard to join the finance team.

Mayor Moss thanked everyone for their participation afjdianed the meeting at 3:07 p.m.

Mayor Clerk

11



